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or unenforceable, the basis for such as-
sertion, including, when prior art is re-
lied on, a showing of how the prior art 
renders each claim invalid or unen-
forceable and a copy of such prior art. 
For good cause, the presiding adminis-
trative law judge may waive any of the 
substantive requirements imposed 
under this paragraph or may impose 
additional requirements. 

(c) Submission of article as exhibit. At 
the time the response is filed, if prac-
ticable, the respondent shall submit 
the accused article imported or sold by 
that respondent, unless the article has 
already been submitted by the com-
plainant.

§ 210.14 Amendments to pleadings and 
notice; supplemental submissions; 
counterclaims. 

(a) Preinstitution amendments. The 
complaint may be amended at any time 
prior to the institution of the inves-
tigation. 

(b) Postinstitution amendments gen-
erally. (1) After an investigation has 
been instituted, the complaint or no-
tice of investigation may be amended 
only by leave of the Commission for 
good cause shown and upon such condi-
tions as are necessary to avoid 
prejudicing the public interest and the 
rights of the parties to the investiga-
tion. A motion for amendment must be 
made to the presiding administrative 
law judge. If the proposed amendment 
of the complaint would require amend-
ing the notice of investigation, the pre-
siding administrative law judge may 
grant the motion only by filing with 
the Commission an initial determina-
tion. All other dispositions of such mo-
tions shall be by order. 

(2) If disposition of the issues in an 
investigation on the merits will be fa-
cilitated, or for other good cause 
shown, the presiding administrative 
law judge may allow appropriate 
amendments to pleadings other than 
complaints upon such conditions as are 
necessary to avoid prejudicing the pub-
lic interest and the rights of the par-
ties to the investigation. 

(c) Postinstitution amendments to con-
form to evidence. When issues not raised 
by the pleadings or notice of investiga-
tion, but reasonably within the scope 
of the pleadings and notice, are consid-

ered during the taking of evidence by 
express or implied consent of the par-
ties, they shall be treated in all re-
spects as if they had been raised in the 
pleadings and notice. Such amend-
ments of the pleadings and notice as 
may be necessary to make them con-
form to the evidence and to raise such 
issues shall be allowed at any time, and 
shall be effective with respect to all 
parties who have expressly or impliedly 
consented. 

(d) Supplemental submissions. The ad-
ministrative law judge may, upon rea-
sonable notice and on such terms as 
are just, permit service of a supple-
mental submission setting forth trans-
actions, occurrences, or events that 
have taken place since the date of the 
submission sought to be supplemented 
and that are relevant to any of the 
issues involved. 

(e) Counterclaims. At any time after 
institution of the investigation, but 
not later than ten business days before 
the commencement of the evidentiary 
hearing, a respondent may file a coun-
terclaim at the Commission in accord-
ance with section 337(c) of the Tariff 
Act of 1930. Counterclaims shall be 
filed in a separate document. A re-
spondent who files such a counterclaim 
shall immediately file a notice of re-
moval with a United States district 
court in which venue for any of the 
counterclaims raised by the respondent 
would exist under 28 U.S.C. 1391. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994]

Subpart D—Motions
§ 210.15 Motions. 

(a) Presentation and disposition. (1) 
During the period between the institu-
tion of an investigation and the assign-
ment of the investigation to a pre-
siding administrative law judge, all 
motions shall be addressed to the chief 
administrative law judge. During the 
time that an investigation or related 
proceeding is before an administrative 
law judge, all motions therein shall be 
addressed to the administrative law 
judge. 

(2) When an investigation or related 
proceeding is before the Commission, 
all motions shall be addressed to the 
Chairman of the Commission. A motion 
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to amend the complaint and notice of 
investigation to name an additional re-
spondent after institution shall be 
served on the proposed respondent. All 
motions shall be filed with the Sec-
retary and shall be served upon each 
party. 

(b) Content. All written motions shall 
state the particular order, ruling, or 
action desired and the grounds there-
for. 

(c) Responses to motions. Within 10 
days after service of any written mo-
tions, or within such longer or shorter 
time as may be designated by the ad-
ministrative law judge or the Commis-
sion, a nonmoving party, or in the in-
stance of a motion to amend the com-
plaint or notice of investigation to 
name an additional respondent after 
institution, the proposed respondent, 
shall respond or he may be deemed to 
have consented to the granting of the 
relief asked for in the motion. The 
moving party shall have no right to 
reply, except as permitted by the ad-
ministrative law judge or the Commis-
sion. 

(d) Motions for extensions. As a matter 
of discretion, the administrative law 
judge or the Commission may waive 
the requirements of this section as to 
motions for extension of time, and may 
rule upon such motions ex parte.

§ 210.16 Default. 
(a) Definition of default. (1) A party 

shall be found in default if it fails to 
respond to the complaint and notice of 
investigation in the manner prescribed 
in § 210.13 or § 210.59(c), or otherwise 
fails to answer the complaint and no-
tice, and fails to show cause why it 
should not be found in default. 

(2) A party may be found in default 
as a sanction for abuse of process, 
under § 210.4(c), or failure to make or 
cooperate in discovery, under 
§ 210.33(b). 

(b) Procedure for determining default. 
(1) If a respondent has failed to respond 
or appear in the manner described in 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section, a party 
may file a motion for, or the adminis-
trative law judge may issue upon his 
own initiative, an order directing that 
respondent to show cause why it should 
not be found in default. If the respond-
ent fails to make the necessary show-

ing, the administrative law judge shall 
issue an initial determination finding 
the respondent in default. An adminis-
trative law judge’s decision denying a 
motion for a finding of default under 
paragraph (a)(1) of this section shall be 
in the form of an order. 

(2) Any party may file a motion for 
issuance of, or the administrative law 
judge may issue on his own initiative, 
an initial determination finding a 
party in default for abuse of process 
under § 210.4(c) or failure to make or co-
operate in discovery. A motion for a 
finding of default as a sanction for 
abuse of process or failure to make or 
cooperate in discovery shall be granted 
by initial determination or denied by 
order. 

(3) A party found in default shall be 
deemed to have waived its right to ap-
pear, to be served with documents, and 
to contest the allegations at issue in 
the investigation. 

(c) Relief against a respondent in de-
fault. (1) After a respondent has been 
found in default by the Commission, 
the complainant may file with the 
Commission a declaration that it is 
seeking immediate entry of relief 
against the respondent in default. The 
facts alleged in the complaint will be 
presumed to be true with respect to the 
defaulting respondent. The Commis-
sion may issue an exclusion order, a 
cease and desist order, or both, affect-
ing the defaulting respondent only 
after considering the effect of such 
order(s) upon the public health and 
welfare, competitive conditions in the 
U.S. economy, the production of like or 
directly competitive articles in the 
United States, and U.S. consumers, and 
concluding that the order(s) should 
still be issued in light of the aforemen-
tioned public interest factors. 

(2) In any motion requesting the 
entry of default or the termination of 
the investigation with respect to the 
last remaining respondent in the inves-
tigation, the complainant shall declare 
whether it is seeking a general exclu-
sion order. The Commission may issue 
a general exclusion order pursuant to 
section 337(g)(2) of the Tariff Act of 
1930, regardless of the source or im-
porter of the articles concerned, pro-
vided that a violation of section 337 of 
the Tariff Act of 1930 is established by 

VerDate Mar<21>2002 10:34 Apr 16, 2002 Jkt 197058 PO 00000 Frm 00138 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\197058T.XXX pfrm03 PsN: 197058T



139

United States International Trade Commission § 210.18

substantial, reliable, and probative evi-
dence, and only after considering the 
aforementioned public interest factors 
and the requirements of § 210.50(c). 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994]

§ 210.17 Failures to act other than the 
statutory forms of default. 

Failures to act other than the de-
faults listed in § 210.16 may provide a 
basis for the presiding administrative 
law judge or the Commission to draw 
adverse inferences and to issue findings 
of fact, conclusions of law, determina-
tions (including a determination on 
violation of section 337 of the Tariff 
Act of 1930), and orders that are ad-
verse to the party who fails to act. 
Such failures include, but are not lim-
ited to: 

(a) Failure to respond to a motion 
that materially alters the scope of the 
investigation or a related proceeding; 

(b) Failure to respond to a motion for 
temporary relief pursuant to § 210.59; 

(c) Failure to respond to a motion for 
summary determination under § 210.18; 

(d) Failure to appear at a hearing be-
fore the administrative law judge after 
filing a written response to the com-
plaint or motion for temporary relief, 
or failure to appear at a hearing before 
the Commission; 

(e) Failure to file a brief or other 
written submission requested by the 
administrative law judge or the Com-
mission during an investigation or a 
related proceeding; 

(f) Failure to respond to a petition 
for review of an initial determination, 
a petition for reconsideration of an ini-
tial determination, or an application 
for interlocutory review of an adminis-
trative law judge’s order; 

(g) Failure to file a brief or other 
written submission requested by the 
administrative law judge or the Com-
mission; and 

(h) Failure to participate in tem-
porary relief bond forfeiture pro-
ceedings under § 210.70. 

The presiding administrative law judge 
or the Commission may take action 
under this rule sua sponte or in re-
sponse to the motion of a party.

§ 210.18 Summary determinations. 

(a) Motions for summary determina-
tions. Any party may move with any 
necessary supporting affidavits for a 
summary determination in his favor 
upon all or any part of the issues to be 
determined in the investigation. Coun-
sel or other representatives in support 
of the complaint may so move at any 
time after 20 days following the date of 
service of the complaint and notice in-
stituting the investigation. Any other 
party or a respondent may so move at 
any time after the date of publication 
of the notice of investigation in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER. Any such motion 
by any party in connection with the 
issue of permanent relief, however, 
must be filed at least 30 days before the 
date fixed for any hearing provided for 
in § 210.36(a)(1). Any motion for sum-
mary determination filed in connection 
with the temporary relief phase of an 
investigation must be filed on or before 
the deadline set by the presiding ad-
ministrative law judge. 

(b) Opposing affidavits; oral argument; 
time and basis for determination. Any 
nonmoving party may file opposing af-
fidavits within 10 days after service of 
the motion for summary determina-
tion. The administrative law judge 
may, in his discretion or at the request 
of any party, set the matter for oral ar-
gument and call for the submission of 
briefs or memoranda. The determina-
tion sought by the moving party shall 
be rendered if pleadings and any depo-
sitions, answers to interrogatories, and 
admissions on file, together with the 
affidavits, if any, show that there is no 
genuine issue as to any material fact 
and that the moving party is entitled 
to a summary determination as a mat-
ter of law. 

(c) Affidavits. Supporting and oppos-
ing affidavits shall be made on per-
sonal knowledge, shall set forth such 
facts as would be admissible in evi-
dence, and shall show affirmatively 
that the affiant is competent to testify 
to the matters stated therein. Sworn or 
certified copies of all papers or parts 
thereof referred to in an affidavit shall 
be attached thereto or served there-
with. The administrative law judge 
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may permit affidavits to be supple-
mented or opposed by depositions, an-
swers to interrogatories, or further af-
fidavits. When a motion for summary 
determination is made and supported 
as provided in this section, a party op-
posing the motion may not rest upon 
the mere allegations or denials of the 
opposing party’s pleading, but the op-
posing party’s response, by affidavits, 
answers to interrogatories, or as other-
wise provided in this section, must set 
forth specific facts showing that there 
is a genuine issue of fact for the evi-
dentiary hearing under § 210.36(a)(1) or 
(2). If the opposing party does not so 
respond, a summary determination, if 
appropriate, shall be rendered against 
the opposing party. 

(d) Refusal of application for summary 
determination; continuances and other or-
ders. Should it appear from the affida-
vits of a party opposing the motion 
that the party cannot, for reasons stat-
ed, present by affidavit facts essential 
to justify the party’s opposition, the 
administrative law judge may refuse 
the application for summary deter-
mination, or may order a continuance 
to permit affidavits to be obtained or 
depositions to be taken or discovery to 
be had or may make such other order 
as is appropriate, and a ruling to that 
effect shall be made a matter of record. 

(e) Order establishing facts. If on mo-
tion under this section a summary de-
termination is not rendered upon the 
whole case or for all the relief asked 
and a hearing is necessary, the admin-
istrative law judge, by examining the 
pleadings and the evidence and by in-
terrogating counsel if necessary, shall 
if practicable ascertain what material 
facts exist without substantial con-
troversy and what material facts are 
actually and in good faith con-
troverted. The administrative law 
judge shall thereupon make an order 
specifying the facts that appear with-
out substantial controversy and direct-
ing such further proceedings in the in-
vestigation as are warranted. The facts 
so specified shall be deemed estab-
lished. 

(f) Order of summary determination. An 
order of summary determination shall 
constitute an initial determination of 
the administrative law judge.

§ 210.19 Intervention. 
Any person desiring to intervene in 

an investigation or a related pro-
ceeding under this part shall make a 
written motion. The motion shall have 
attached to it a certificate showing 
that the motion has been served upon 
each party to the investigation or re-
lated proceeding in the manner de-
scribed in § 201.16(b) of this chapter. 
Any party may file a response to the 
motion in accordance with § 210.15(c) of 
this part, provided that the response is 
accompanied by a certificate con-
firming that the response was served 
on the proposed intervenor and all 
other parties. The Commission, or the 
administrative law judge by initial de-
termination, may grant the motion to 
the extent and upon such terms as may 
be proper under the circumstances.

§ 210.20 Declassification of confiden-
tial information. 

(a) Any party may move to declassify 
documents (or portions thereof) that 
have been designated confidential by 
the submitter but that do not satisfy 
the confidentiality criteria set forth in 
§ 201.6(a) of this chapter. All such mo-
tions, whether brought at any time 
during the investigation or after con-
clusion of the investigation shall be ad-
dressed to and ruled upon by the pre-
siding administrative law judge, or if 
the investigation is not before a pre-
siding administrative law judge, by the 
chief administrative law judge or such 
administrative law judge as he may 
designate. 

(b) Following issuance of a public 
version of the initial determination on 
whether there is a violation of section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 or an initial 
determination that would otherwise 
terminate the investigation (if adopted 
by the Commission), the granting of a 
motion, in whole or part, to declassify 
information designated confidential 
shall constitute an initial determina-
tion, except as to that information for 
which no submissions in opposition to 
declassification have been filed.

§ 210.21 Termination of investigations. 
(a) Motions for termination. (1) Any 

party may move at any time prior to 
the issuance of an initial determina-
tion on violation of section 337 of the 
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Tariff Act of 1930 for an order to termi-
nate an investigation in whole or in 
part as to any or all respondents, on 
the basis of withdrawal of the com-
plaint or certain allegations contained 
therein, or for good cause other than 
the grounds listed in paragraph (a)(2) of 
this section. The presiding administra-
tive law judge may grant the motion in 
an initial determination upon such 
terms and conditions as he deems prop-
er. 

(2) Any party may move at any time 
for an order to terminate an investiga-
tion in whole or in part as to any or all 
respondents on the basis of a settle-
ment, a licensing or other agreement, 
including an agreement to present the 
matter for arbitration, or a consent 
order, as provided in paragraphs (b), (c) 
and (d) of this section. 

(b) Termination by Settlement. (1) An 
investigation before the Commission 
may be terminated as to one or more 
respondents pursuant to section 337(c) 
of the Tariff Act of 1930 on the basis of 
a licensing or other settlement agree-
ment. A motion for termination by set-
tlement shall contain copies of the li-
censing or other settlement agreement, 
any supplemental agreements, and a 
statement that there are no other 
agreements, written or oral, express or 
implied between the parties concerning 
the subject matter of the investigation. 
If the licensing or other settlement 
agreement contains confidential busi-
ness information within the meaning of 
§ 201.6(a) of this chapter, a copy of the 
agreement with such information de-
leted shall accompany the motion. 

(2) The motion and agreement(s) 
shall be certified by the administrative 
law judge to the Commission with an 
initial determination if the motion for 
termination is granted. If the licensing 
or other agreement or the initial deter-
mination contains confidential busi-
ness information, copies of the agree-
ment and initial determination with 
confidential business information de-
leted shall be certified to the Commis-
sion simultaneously with the confiden-
tial versions of such documents. Notice 
of the initial determination and the 
agreement shall be provided to the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human 
Services, the U.S. Department of Jus-
tice, the Federal Trade Commission, 

the U.S. Customs Service, and such 
other departments and agencies as the 
Commission deems appropriate. If the 
Commission’s final disposition of the 
initial determination results in termi-
nation of the investigation in its en-
tirety, a notice will be published in the 
FEDERAL REGISTER. An order of termi-
nation by settlement need not con-
stitute a determination as to violation 
of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930. 

(c) Termination by entry of consent 
order. An investigation before the Com-
mission may be terminated pursuant to 
section 337(c) of the Tariff Act of 1930 
on the basis of a consent order. An 
order of termination by consent order 
need not constitute a determination as 
to violation of section 337. 

(1) Opportunity to submit proposed con-
sent order—(i) Prior to institution of an 
investigation. Where time, the nature of 
the proceeding, and the public interest 
permit, any person being investigated 
pursuant to section 603 of the Trade 
Act of 1974 (19 U.S.C. § 2482) shall be af-
forded the opportunity to submit to 
the Commission a proposal for disposi-
tion of the matter under investigation 
in the form of a consent order stipula-
tion that incorporates a proposed con-
sent order executed by or on behalf of 
such person and that complies with the 
requirements of paragraph (c)(3) of this 
section. 

(ii) Subsequent to institution of an in-
vestigation. In investigations under sec-
tion 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, a pro-
posal to terminate by consent order 
shall be submitted as a motion to the 
administrative law judge with a stipu-
lation that incorporates a proposed 
consent order. If the stipulation con-
tains confidential business information 
within the meaning of § 201.6(a) of this 
chapter, a copy of the stipulation with 
such information deleted shall accom-
pany the motion. The stipulation shall 
comply with the requirements of para-
graph (c)(3)(i) of this section. At any 
time prior to commencement of the 
hearing, the motion may be filed by 
one or more respondents, and may be 
filed jointly with other parties to the 
investigation. Upon request and for 
good cause shown, the administrative 
law judge may consider such a motion 
during or after a hearing. The filing of 
the motion shall not stay proceedings 
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before the administrative law judge un-
less the administrative law judge so or-
ders. The administrative law judge 
shall promptly file with the Commis-
sion an initial determination regarding 
the motion for termination if the mo-
tion is granted. If the initial deter-
mination contains confidential busi-
ness information, a copy of the initial 
determination with such information 
deleted shall be filed with the Commis-
sion simultaneously with the filing of 
the confidential version of the initial 
determination. Pending disposition by 
the Commission of a consent order 
stipulation, a party may not, absent 
good cause shown, withdraw from the 
stipulation once it has been submitted 
pursuant to this section. 

(2) Commission disposition of consent 
order. (i) If an initial determination 
granting the motion for termination 
based on a consent order stipulation is 
filed with the Commission, notice of 
the initial determination and the con-
sent order stipulation shall be provided 
to the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services, the U.S. Department 
of Justice, the Federal Trade Commis-
sion, the U.S. Customs Service, and 
such other departments and agencies 
as the Commission deems appropriate. 

(ii) The Commission, after consid-
ering the effect of the settlement by 
consent order upon the public health 
and welfare, competitive conditions in 
the U.S. economy, the production of 
like or directly competitive articles in 
the United States, and U.S. consumers, 
shall dispose of the initial determina-
tion according to the procedures of 
§§ 210.42 through 210.45. If the Commis-
sion’s final disposition of the initial de-
termination results in termination of 
the investigation in its entirety, a no-
tice will be published in the FEDERAL 
REGISTER. An order of termination by 
consent order need not constitute a de-
termination as to violation of section 
337. Should the Commission reverse the 
initial determination, the parties are 
in no way bound by their proposal in 
later actions before the Commission. 

(3) Contents of consent order stipula-
tion—(i) Contents. (A) Every consent 
order stipulation shall contain, in addi-
tion to the proposed consent order, the 
following: 

(1) An admission of all jurisdictional 
facts; 

(2) An express waiver of all rights to 
seek judicial review or otherwise chal-
lenge or contest the validity of the 
consent order; 

(3) A statement that the signatories 
to the consent order stipulation will 
cooperate with and will not seek to im-
pede by litigation or other means the 
Commission’s efforts to gather infor-
mation under subpart I of this part; 
and 

(4) A statement that the enforce-
ment, modification, and revocation of 
the consent order will be carried out 
pursuant to subpart I of this part, in-
corporating by reference the Commis-
sion’s Rules of Practice and Procedure. 

(B) In the case of an intellectual 
property-based investigation, the con-
sent order stipulation shall also con-
tain— 

(1) A statement that the consent 
order shall not apply with respect to 
any claim of any intellectual property 
right that has expired or been found or 
adjudicated invalid or unenforceable by 
the Commission or a court or agency of 
competent jurisdiction, provided that 
such finding or judgment has become 
final and nonreviewable; and 

(2) A statement that each signatory 
to the stipulation who was a respond-
ent in the investigation will not seek 
to challenge the validity of the intel-
lectual property right(s), in any admin-
istrative or judicial proceeding to en-
force the consent order. 

(C) The consent order stipulation 
may contain a statement that the sign-
ing thereof is for settlement purposes 
only and does not constitute admission 
by any respondent that an unfair act 
has been committed. 

(ii) Effect, interpretation, and report-
ing. The consent order shall have the 
same force and effect and may be en-
forced, modified, or revoked in the 
same manner as is provided in section 
337 of the Tariff Act of 1930 and this 
part for other Commission actions. The 
Commission may require periodic com-
pliance reports pursuant to subpart I of 
this part to be submitted by the person 
entering into the consent order stipula-
tion. 

(d) Termination based upon arbitration 
agreement. Upon filing of a motion for 
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termination with the administrative 
law judge or the Commission, a section 
337 investigation may be terminated as 
to one or more respondents pursuant to 
section 337(c) of the Tariff Act of 1930 
on the basis of an agreement between 
complainant and one or more of the re-
spondents to present the matter for ar-
bitration. The motion and a copy of the 
arbitration agreement shall be cer-
tified by the administrative law judge 
to the Commission with an initial de-
termination if the motion for termi-
nation is granted. If the agreement or 
the initial determination contains con-
fidential business information, copies 
of the agreement and initial deter-
mination with confidential business in-
formation deleted shall be certified to 
the Commission with the confidential 
versions of such documents. A notice 
will be published in the FEDERAL REG-
ISTER if the Commission’s final disposi-
tion of the initial determination re-
sults in termination of the investiga-
tion in its entirety. An order of termi-
nation based on an arbitration agree-
ment does not constitute a determina-
tion as to violation of section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930. 

(e) Effect of termination. An order of 
termination issued by the administra-
tive law judge shall constitute an ini-
tial determination. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994; 60 FR 53120, Oct. 12, 
1995]

§ 210.22 Designating an investigation 
‘‘more complicated’’. 

(a) Definition. A more complicated in-
vestigation is an investigation that is 
of an involved nature owing to the sub-
ject matter, difficulty in obtaining in-
formation, the large number of parties 
involved, or other significant factors. 

(b) Temporary relief. The Commission 
or the presiding administrative law 
judge, pursuant to § 210.60, may declare 
an investigation ‘‘more complicated’’ 
in order to have up to 60 days of addi-
tional time to adjudicate a motion for 
temporary relief. See also § 210.51(b). 
The Commission’s or the administra-
tive law judge’s reasons for designating 
the investigation ‘‘more complicated’’ 
for that purpose shall be published in 
the FEDERAL REGISTER. The extended 
deadline for concluding an investiga-

tion that has been designated ‘‘more 
complicated’’ under this paragraph 
shall be computed in the manner speci-
fied in § 210.51(c). 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994]

§ 210.23 Suspension of investigation. 
Any party may move to suspend an 

investigation under this part, because 
of the pendency of proceedings before 
the Secretary of Commerce or the ad-
ministering authority pursuant to sec-
tion 337(b)(3) of the Tariff Act of 1930. 
The administrative law judge or the 
Commission also may raise the issue 
sua sponte. An administrative law 
judge’s decision granting a motion for 
suspension shall be in the form of an 
initial determination. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994]

§ 210.24 Interlocutory appeals. 
Rulings by the administrative law 

judge on motions may not be appealed 
to the Commission prior to the admin-
istrative law judge’s issuance of an ini-
tial determination, except in the fol-
lowing circumstances: 

(a) Appeals without leave of the admin-
istrative law judge. The Commission 
may in its discretion entertain inter-
locutory appeals, except as provided in 
§ 210.64, when a ruling of the adminis-
trative law judge: 

(1) Requires the disclosure of Com-
mission records or requires the appear-
ance of Government officials pursuant 
to § 210.32(c)(2); or 

(2) Denies an application for inter-
vention under § 210.19. Appeals from 
such rulings may be sought by filing an 
application for review, not to exceed 15 
pages, with the Commission within five 
days after service of the administrative 
law judge’s ruling. An answer to the 
application for review may be filed 
within five days after service of the ap-
plication. The application for review 
should specify the person or party tak-
ing the appeal, designate the ruling or 
part thereof from which appeal is being 
taken, and specify the reasons and 
present arguments as to why review is 
being sought. The Commission may, 
upon its own motion, enter an order 
staying the return date of an order 
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issued by the administrative law judge 
pursuant to § 210.32(c)(2) or may enter 
an order placing the matter on the 
Commission’s docket for review. Any 
order placing the matter on the Com-
mission’s docket for review will set 
forth the scope of the review and the 
issues that will be considered and will 
make provision for the filing of briefs 
if deemed appropriate by the Commis-
sion. 

(b) Appeals with leave of the adminis-
trative law judge. (1) Except as other-
wise provided in paragraph (a) of this 
section, § 210.64, and paragraph (b)(2) of 
this section, applications for review of 
a ruling by an administrative law judge 
may be allowed only upon request 
made to the administrative law judge 
and upon determination by the admin-
istrative law judge in writing, with jus-
tification in support thereof, that the 
ruling involves a controlling question 
of law or policy as to which there is 
substantial ground for difference of 
opinion, and that either an immediate 
appeal from the ruling may materially 
advance the ultimate completion of the 
investigation or subsequent review will 
be an inadequate remedy. 

(2) Applications for review of a ruling 
by an administrative law judge under 
§ 210.5(e)(1) as to whether information 
designated confidential by the supplier 
is entitled to confidential treatment 
under § 210.5(b) may be allowed only 
upon request made to the administra-
tive law judge and upon determination 
by the administrative law judge in 
writing, with justification in support 
thereof. 

(3) A written application for review 
under paragraph (b)(1) or (b)(2) of this 
section shall not exceed 15 pages and 
may be filed within five days after 
service of the administrative law 
judge’s determination. An answer to 
the application for review may be filed 
within five days after service of the ap-
plication for review. Thereupon, the 
Commission may, in its discretion, per-
mit an appeal. Unless otherwise or-
dered by the Commission, Commission 
review, if permitted, shall be confined 
to the application for review and an-
swer thereto, without oral argument or 
further briefs. 

(c) Investigation not stayed. Applica-
tion for review under this section shall 

not stay the investigation before the 
administrative law judge unless the ad-
ministrative law judge or the Commis-
sion shall so order. 

[59 FR 39039, Aug. 1, 1994, as amended at 59 
FR 67627, Dec. 30, 1994]

§ 210.25 Sanctions. 

(a)(1) Any party may file a motion 
for sanctions for abuse of process under 
§ 210.4(d)(1), abuse of discovery under 
§ 210.27(d)(3), failure to make or cooper-
ate in discovery under § 210.33 (b) or (c), 
or violation of a protective order under 
§ 210.34(c). A motion alleging abuse of 
process should be filed promptly after 
the requirements of § 210.4(d)(1)(i) have 
been satisfied. A motion alleging abuse 
of discovery, failure to make or cooper-
ate in discovery, or violation of a pro-
tective order should be filed promptly 
after the allegedly sanctionable con-
duct is discovered. 

(2) The administrative law judge 
(when the investigation or related pro-
ceeding is before him) or the Commis-
sion (when the investigation or related 
proceeding is before it) also may raise 
the sanction issue sua sponte. (See also 
§§ 210.4(d)(1)(ii), 210.27(d)(3), 210.33(c), 
and 210.34(c).) 

(b) A motion for sanctions shall be 
addressed to the presiding administra-
tive law judge, if the allegedly 
sanctionable conduct occurred and is 
discovered while the administrative 
law judge is presiding in an investiga-
tion or in a related proceeding. During 
an investigation, the administrative 
law judge’s ruling on the motion shall 
be in the form of an order, if it is 
issued before or concurrently with the 
initial determination concerning viola-
tion of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 
1930 or termination of the investiga-
tion. In a related proceeding, the ad-
ministrative law judge’s ruling shall be 
in the form of an order, regardless of 
the point in time at which the order is 
issued. 

(c) A motion for sanctions shall be 
addressed to the Commission, if the al-
legedly sanctionable conduct occurred 
while the Commission is presiding or is 
filed after the subject investigation or 
related proceeding is terminated. The 
Commission may assign the motion to 
an administrative law judge for 
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issuance of a recommended determina-
tion. The deadlines and procedures that 
will be followed in processing the rec-
ommended determination will be set 
forth in the Commission order assign-
ing the motion to an administrative 
law judge. 

(d) If an administrative law judge’s 
order concerning sanctions is issued be-
fore the initial determination con-
cerning violation of section 337 of the 
Tariff Act of 1930 or termination of the 
investigation, it may be appealed under 
§ 210.24(b)(1) with leave from the admin-
istrative law judge, if the requirements 
of that section are satisfied. If the 
order is issued concurrently with the 
initial determination, the order may be 
appealed by filing a petition meeting 
the requirements of § 210.43(b). The pe-
riods for filing such petitions and re-
sponding to the petitions will be speci-
fied in the Commission notice issued 
pursuant to § 210.42(i), if the initial de-
termination has granted a motion for 
termination of the investigation, or in 
the Commission notice issued pursuant 
to § 210.46(a), if the initial determina-
tion concerns violation of section 337. 
The Commission will determine wheth-
er to adopt the order after disposition 
of the initial determination concerning 
violation of section 337 or termination 
of the investigation. 

(e) If the administrative law judge’s 
ruling on the motion for sanctions is in 
the form of a recommended determina-
tion pursuant to paragraph (c) of this 
section, the deadlines and procedures 
for parties to contest the recommended 
determination will be set forth in the 
Commission order assigning the mo-
tion to an administrative law judge. 

(f) If a motion for sanctions is filed 
with the administrative law judge dur-
ing an investigation, he may defer his 
adjudication of the motion until after 
he has issued a final initial determina-
tion concerning violation of section 337 
of the Tariff Act of 1930 or termination 
of investigation. If the administrative 
law judge defers his adjudication in 
such a manner, his ruling on the mo-
tion for sanctions must be in the form 
of a recommended determination and 
shall be issued no later than 90 days 
after issuance of the aforesaid initial 
determination on violation of section 
337 or termination of the investigation. 

To aid the Commission in determining 
whether to adopt a recommended de-
termination, any party may file writ-
ten comments with the Commission 14 
days after service of the recommended 
determination. Replies to such com-
ments may be filed within seven days 
after service of the comments. The 
Commission will determine whether to 
adopt the recommended determination 
after reviewing the parties’ arguments 
and taking any other steps the Com-
mission deems appropriate.

§ 210.26 Other motions. 
Motions pertaining to discovery shall 

be filed in accordance with § 210.15 and 
the pertinent provisions of subpart E of 
this part (§§ 210.27 through 210.34). Mo-
tions pertaining to evidentiary hear-
ings and prehearing conferences shall 
be filed in accordance with § 210.15 and 
the pertinent provisions of subpart F of 
this part (§§ 210.35 through 210.40). Mo-
tions for temporary relief shall be filed 
as provided in subpart H of this part 
(see §§ 210.52 through 210.57).

Subpart E—Discovery and 
Compulsory Process

§ 210.27 General provisions governing 
discovery. 

(a) Discovery methods. The parties to 
an investigation may obtain discovery 
by one or more of the following meth-
ods: depositions upon oral examination 
or written questions; written interrog-
atories; production of documents or 
things or permission to enter upon land 
or other property for inspection or 
other purposes; and requests for admis-
sions. 

(b) Scope of discovery. Regarding the 
scope of discovery for the temporary 
relief phase of an investigation, see 
§ 210.61. For the permanent relief phase 
of an investigation, unless otherwise 
ordered by the administrative law 
judge, a party may obtain discovery re-
garding any matter, not privileged, 
that is relevant to the following: 

(1) The claim or defense of the party 
seeking discovery or to the claim or 
defense of any other party, including 
the existence, description, nature, cus-
tody, condition, and location of any 
books, documents, or other tangible 
things; 
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